
   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA  

 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING 

September 23, 2015 

9:00 a.m. 

 

 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Accept comments from the public. 

 

3. Approve minutes from the June 10 and July 23, 2015 Board meetings. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

4. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) 

  
Agency designated representatives: 
Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer 
Christina Dunn, Retirement Admin/HR Manager 

Joe Wiley/Masa Shiohira, CCCERA's Chief Negotiator 

 

Employee Organization: AFSCME Local 2700 
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions 

 

OPEN SESSION 

 

5. Presentation from staff on Real Asset commitment pace. 

 

6. Presentation from staff and Aether regarding proposed Aether IV commitment. 

 

7. Consider and take possible action to commit to Aether IV. 

 

8. Presentation from staff and Siguler Guff regarding proposed Siguler Guff DREOF II 

Co-investment Fund commitment. 

 

9. Consider and take possible action to commit to Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-investment 

Fund. 

 

 

 

 



   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 
10. Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with 

McLagan for an investment compensation study.   

 

11. Consider and take possible action to accept the actuarial valuation of future annual 

costs of proposed changes to Other Post Employment Benefits as provided by 

Milliman. 

 

12. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 

a. CRCEA Fall Conference, CRCEA, October 19-21, 2015, Stockton, CA. 

b. Educational Forum, CalPERS, October 26-28, 2015, San Jose, CA.  

c. SACRS Fall Conference, SACRS, November 17-20, 2015, San Diego, CA. 

 

13. Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report 

b. Outside Professionals’ Report  

c. Trustees’ comments 



 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
FIRST MONTHLY BOARD MEETING 

9:00 a.m. 
 

June 10, 2015 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

 
 
Present: Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie 

Kroll, John Phillips, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey and Jerry Telles 
 
Absent: William Pigeon and Russell Watts 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement 

Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Karen 
Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Vickie Kaplan, Retirement Accounting Manager; and 
Christina Dunn, Retirement Administrative/HR Manager 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Susan Hastings  Laughlin, Falbo, Levy & Moresi LLP 
Joe Wiley  Wiley, Price & Radulovich LLP  
 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No members of the public offered comment. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the March 19, 2015 meeting changing the word “their” to 
“there” on the first line of Item 7.(a), Staff Report. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, 
Phillips, Rodrigues and Smithey) 

Telles was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the March 25, 2015 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, 
Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

4. Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the June 10, 2015 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, 
Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 



Page 2 
June 10, 2015 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957, 54956.9(d)(1) and 54957.6. 
 

The Board moved into open session. 
 

5. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability 
benefits: 

a. Khalid Abdul-Majied – Service Connected (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Telles. Abs.: Phillips) 

b. Joyce Henkel – Non-service Connected (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Telles) 

 
6. It was M/S/C to accept the Administrative Law Judge’s recommendation and deny the service 

connected disability retirement for Janice Stogner-Smith. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, 
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

7. Levy reported the following out of closed session pursuant to Brown Act, Government Code Section 
54957.1(a)(2): 

In closed session on September 10, 2014, the Board directed its legal counsel to initiate action seeking 
to recover overpayments of retirement allowance paid after the death of the retiree.  The retiree, 
Margaret Richards, passed away in 2002 but the death was never reported to CCCERA, resulting in 
the overpayments.  CCCERA discovered the overpayments in 2014 and immediately stopped future 
payments.  CCCERA filed actions in Oregon State court seeking recovery of the overpayments. 

The vote in closed session was as follows: 

Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts. 

No: None 

Abstentions: None 

8. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6 

9. Consider and take possible action to adopt a hearing policy for non-disability matters 

Levy reviewed her memo regarding a hearing policy for non-disability matters noting this policy 
closely resembles the disability hearing process. She reviewed the purpose of the policy, the rules by 
which administrative hearings for non-disability matters would be conducted, and definitions 
contained in the policy. 

She recommended changing the definition of “Hearing Officer” to include State Bar Association 
membership.  She also recommended deleting the last paragraph of Section C.1., changing the first 
part of IV. Policy, F. Board Consideration and Action, 3. Error of Law, to “When a party’s motion for 
reconsideration is for a cause mentioned in Section F.2. above.” 

After a discussion on communications with Board members, it was M/S/C to adopt the Hearing Policy 
for Non-Disability Matters with the changes identified by general counsel. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, 
Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

10. Review of 2014 administrative budget vs. actual report 



Page 3 
June 10, 2015 

 

 

Strohl reported CCCERA is once again under budget noting the main areas under budget are salaries 
and benefits, which is due to delayed hires.  This contributed to temporary salaries being over budget.  
She reported maintenance service contracts is over budget due to items needing to be reclassified to 
other accounts. She noted the administrative budget was 28% under budget. 

11. Market stabilization account report as of December 31, 2014 

Kaplan reviewed the Market Stabilization Account reports as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 
2014. She reported for the period January 2014 through June 2014 there was an investment gain of 
$97.6 million and a total deferred return of $513 million. She reported for the period July 2014 through 
December 2014 there was an investment loss of $115.6 million and a total deferred return of $336 
million. She noted we were still able to recognize a gain of $61 million with smoothing. 

Kaplan also reviewed the contra tracking account adjustments for the same periods. 

12. Legislative Update  

Levy gave an update on pending legislation. The Board requested that future updates include the bill 
number and the authors of the bills. 

13. Conference Seminar Attendance 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 3 Board members at the Modern Investment Theory & 
Practice for Retirement Systems, SACRS, July 26-29, 2015, Berkeley, CA.  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, 
Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 2 Board members at the Principles of Pension 
Management, CALAPRS, August 25-28, 2015, Malibu, CA. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, 
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

 
14. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 

Strohl reported CPAS is on site working with accounting; Verus will present the interview results 
at the next meeting; Segal will present the actuarial valuation in July; Member benefit statements 
were mailed out; we will be having our first staff development day next month; and the CCCERA 
picnic went well. 

 
Dunn reported we are having excel training on site for staff. 
 
Kaplan reported there was a GASB 67/68 meeting with plan sponsors; Brown Armstrong will 
present the audit at the next Board meeting; and, the CAFR will be presented at the next meeting. 
 
Price reported investments have been working hard on upcoming projects; and, Angelo Gordon 
will be presenting at the next Board meeting.  

 
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 
None 
 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 
 

Phillips requested staff provide a presentation of a sample of the benefits statements at the next 
meeting. 



Page 4 
June 10, 2015 

 

 

 
Rodrigues reported he was really impressed with Verus. He stated any suggestions for the 
SACRS Conference can be emailed to him. 
 
Telles attended the Adams Street Conference with Youngman and felt it was a good 
conference. 
 
Holcombe reported he attended the CCCERA picnic. 

 
 

 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey 
and Telles) 
 
 
 
 
             
Brian Hast, Chairman     Jerry Telles, Secretary 
 
 



 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
SECOND MONTHLY MEETING 

9:00 a.m. 
 

July 23, 2015 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

 
 
Present: Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie 

Kroll, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Todd Smithey and Belinda Zhu 
 
Absent: Gabe Rodrigues, Jerry Telles and Russell Watts 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement 

Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Karen 
Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Vickie Kaplan, Retirement Accounting Manager; 
Wrally Dutkiewicz, Retirement Compliance Officer; and Christina Dunn, Retirement 
Administration Manager 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 
 Edward Hoffman Verus Consulting Group 
 Scott Whalen Verus Consulting Group 
 Joe Wiley Wiley Price & Radulovich LLP 
  
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Phillips led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No members of the public offered comment. 

Allen was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 
 
The Board moved into open session. 
 
3. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 

4. Consider and take possible action to adopt the Memorandum of Understanding between 
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association and United Clerical, Technical & 
specialized Employees (AFSCME) Local 2700 for the period of July 1, 2013 through December 
31, 2016 and authorize the Retirement CEO to execute said MOU 



Page 2 
July 23, 2015 

 

 

Dunn briefly reviewed the contract noting the main changes are removing Contra Costa County as 
the employer and changing it to CCCERA. 

It was M/S/C to adopt the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Contra Costa County 
Employees’ Retirement Association and United Clerical, Technical & Specialized Employees 
(AFSCME) Local 2700 for the period of July 1, 2013 and December 31, 2016 and authorize the 
Retirement CEO to execute said MOU (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, 
Smithey and Zhu) 

5. Presentation from staff and Commonfund regarding proposed Commonfund Natural 
Resources Fund Commitment – Steve Lanzo, Tim Yates, Greg Jansen, Kent Scott 

Price reviewed the background on the proposed Commonfund Natural Resources Fund noting it is 
consistent with the deployment strategy laid out in the private real asset commitment schedule 
presented to the Board in November 2014.   

Chu reported staff is looking for a long-time partner, focusing on net of fees investment 
performance.  He reviewed the major negotiation points and explained the fee structure. He also 
reviewed the backgrounds of Commonfund’s key investment professionals who would be working 
with CCCERA. 

Lanzo reviewed the backgrounds of the team and their roles in the Fund.  He gave an overview of 
the firm noting they have $26 billion in assets under management. He summarized their objectives in 
natural resources investing.  

Jansen reviewed the global natural resources investment team noting it is governed by an investment 
committee.  He reviewed oil prices and their volatility.  He also reviewed their deal flow and 
investment process which they have used for 20 years. 

Scott reviewed their natural resources performance relative to the benchmark. 

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

Yates reviewed their partnership approach. 

6. Consider and take possible action to commit to Commonfund Natural Resources Fund 

After a brief discussion on the structure, it was M/S/C to commit $100 million to Commonfund 
Natural Resources Fund subject to a successful on-site visit, legal review and authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute the necessary contracts. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, 
Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Zhu) 

7. Presentation from Verus on Current Assessment Review of CCCERA 

Hoffman reported the assessment review is the next step prior to the investment strategy workshop. 
He reviewed the investment policy statement, liabilities, asset allocation, risk exposures, and 
investment managers for CCCERA. 
 

Zhu was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 
 

He reviewed potential improvements to the investment policy statement. Whalen noted the 
improvements would be reviewed and discussed at the investment strategy workshop. 

Andersen was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 
 



Page 3 
July 23, 2015 

 

 

8. Consider and take possible action on revised Board meeting schedule for 2015 

A revised Board meeting schedule for 2015 was distributed to include September 23, 2015 as a 
meeting date. 
 
Whalen noted the change being requested is due to workshop dates.  
 
It was M/S/C to adopt the revised Board meeting schedule for 2015 as presented. (Yes: Allen, 
Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon and Smithey). 
 
Phillips noted the Board agreed to September 29 and 30, 2015 as workshop meeting dates. 

 
9. Presentation of revised annual member benefit statement 

Schneider reviewed the revised Annual CCCERA member benefit statement which is sent to active 
and deferred members. He noted a new form has been attached for the members to report corrections 
that need to be made.  

Strohl thanked Schneider for all his work in revising the statement noting it is a very big 
improvement over the previous statement.   

10. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 2 Board members at the Alternative Investment 
Strategies, IFEBP, July 27-29, 2015, San Francisco, CA. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, 
Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon and Smithey). 

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 3 Board members and 3 staff members at the 
Fiduciaries’ Forum, Nossaman, September 24-25, 2015, San Francisco, CA.  (Yes: Allen, 
Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon and Smithey). 

c. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 4 Board members at the 27th Annual Northern 
California Public Retirement Seminar, Public Retirement Journal, October 1, 2015, Sacramento, 
CA. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon and Smithey). 

11. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 
Strohl reported an RFP has been issued for a classification and total compensation study. 
 
Dunn reported Casas is back and to contact her regarding travel. She thanked Rossini and 
Sommers for their work in her absence. 
 
Price distributed a memo from staff regarding a First Eagle ownership change; CCCERA joined 
the International Limited Partners Association and he attended one of their educational 
sessions; onsite with Artisan it was good. 
 
Schneider reported the website project is on schedule. 
 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    
 
Hoffman distributed an agenda for the Verus Client Summit. 
 



Page 4 
July 23, 2015 

 

 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 
 
Gordon reported the CALAPRS Trustee Roundtable is in October and they are trying to get 
more Trustee’s to attend. 
 

 
 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon and 
Smithey) 
 
 
 
 
             
John Phillips, Chairman     Scott Gordon, Secretary 
 
 



1 
 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date:   September 16, 2015 
 
To:   CCCERA Board of Retirement 
 
From:   Tim Price, Chief Investment Officer 

Jeff Youngman, Investment Analyst 
 
Subject:  Private Real Asset Over-Commitment Pace 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Overview 
CCCERA’s real asset commitment schedule was presented to the Board last fall, in a memo dated 
November 17, 2014. In this memo, Staff recommended that the Board over-commit to all private real 
assets (both the direct funds and fund-of-funds) by 75% to account for the lag time between when 
dollars are committed and when dollars are invested. Staff now recommends a practice of 75% over-
commitment to direct funds, and a 100% over-commitment to fund-of-funds.  
  
CCCERA Private Real Asset Over-Commitment Pace 
Staff recommends a change to this over-commitment pace based on the experience of CCCERA’s real 
asset managers. Direct funds (such as the Waste Water Opportunity Fund and Ares EIF Fund V) are able 
to put capital to work quickly, but still have a lag between when dollars are investment after CCCERA 
makes a commitment. For direct funds, Staff recommends the Board maintain the practice of over-
committing by 75%. 
 
Fund-of-funds (which currently include Aether and Commonfund) experience a materially longer lag 
between capital commitment and investment. In this area of real assets, after a dollar is committed by 
CCCERA it can take up to six or seven years before the final dollar committed is actually invested.  For 
example, if a commitment is made today to a real asset fund-of-funds with a three-year investment 
period, the manager will have three years to commit all of CCCERA’s commitment to underlying 
partnerships. Once the manager has committed all of the portfolio capital, it can then take three years 
(the investment period for the underlying partnership) before all the capital is drawn for one specific 
investment.   
 
Additionally, CCCERA’s current fund-of-funds managers invest primarily in non-cash flowing assets 
(upstream commodities) which produce returns in the form of capital gains. CCCERA’s practice of over-
commitment is based on the characteristics of the partnerships. Generally speaking, investments with 
longer holding periods or a higher portion of return coming from capital gain require a larger over-
commitment to compensate for the slower capital deployment and slower capital return pace. This is 
summarized by Table I on the following page: 



2 
 

 
Table I: Over-Commitment Level for Different Partnership Characteristics 
 

  
Holding Period 

  
Longer Shorter 

R
e

tu
rn

 D
ri

ve
r 

Yi
el

d
 

Higher Over-Commitment Lower Over-Commitment 

C
ap

it
al

 A
p

p
re

ci
at

io
n

 

Higher Over-Commitment Lower Over-Commitment 

 
As displayed in Table I, private partnerships with longer holding periods (such as fund-of-funds) should 
be over-committed more as capital takes longer to be deployed and returned; private assets that have 
higher portion of the return coming from capital gain should also be more over-committed to reflect the 
longer period to get the capital back (since less of the return is based on current income). CCCERA’s 
current private real asset allocations are mapped into Table I as shown below: 
 

  
Holding Period 

  
Longer Shorter 

R
e

tu
rn

 D
ri

ve
r 

Yi
el

d
 

 

Ares EIF V                                   
Wastewater Opportunity 

Fund 

C
ap

it
al

 A
p

p
re

ci
at

io
n

 

Fund-of-Funds                   
(Aether & Commonfund)  

 
Based on this, Staff recommends a practice of 100% over-commitment to real asset fund-of-funds, and 
recommends that the aggregate over-commitment to private real assets be based on the pro-rata real 
asset portfolio to account for the mix of direct and fund-of-funds investments.  
 
 
 
 
 



 1 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:   September 16, 2015 
 
To:   CCCERA Board of Retirement 
 
From:   Tim Price, Chief Investment Officer  

Jeff Youngman, Investment Analyst 
 
Subject:  Commitment to Aether Real Assets IV 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
We recommend the Board make a commitment of $50 million to the Aether Real Assets IV strategy 
pending successful due diligence and legal review.  
 
This fund is the follow-on fund to Aether Real Assets III, and will follow a similar strategy of investing in 
real asset funds. Aether was one of CCCERA’s first private real assets managers alongside Commonfund 
when the program was funded in 2013. As CCCERA’s assets have grown, and the managers are coming 
to market with new funds, staff feels it is prudent to review the managers and recommend an allocation 
to maintain vintage year and asset diversification if the merits of the fund warrant a renewed 
commitment from CCCERA. 
 
Two implementation vehicles are offered for the Aether Real Assets IV strategy; the main fund and the 
surplus fund. This is similar to Aether Real Assets III, where CCCERA made commitments to both the 
main and surplus funds. Staff requests discretion over selection of the implementation vehicle for this 
mandate pending Aether’s fundraising and capacity for CCCERA’s allocation in the main and surplus 
funds. 
 
This memo provides a review of CCCERA’s current investments with Aether, an update on the amount of 
commitments available for CCCERA to private real asset investments, and the summary of terms for the 
new fund. 
 
CCCERA Aether Relationship 
CCCERA initiated its relationship with Aether with a $75 million commitment to the Aether Real Asset III 
strategy in 2013. The investment was spread across two implementation vehicles: $25mm to the Aether 
Real Assets III Fund and $50mm to the Aether Real Assets III Surplus Fund. Details of the CCCERA’s 
commitments to Aether Real Asset III strategies is shown below: 

 

Aether Fund Vintage Year Commitment Market Value Capital Called

Capital 

Distributed

Remaining 

Commitment TVPI

Aether Real Assets III 2013 25,000,000$    5,082,000$        5,032,000$      -$                  19,968,000$    1.01

Aether Real Assets III Surplus 2013 50,000,000$    15,560,000$      15,332,000$    -$                  34,668,000$    1.01

Total 75,000,000$    20,642,000$      20,364,000$    -$                  54,636,000$    1.01



 2 

Aether and Commonfund were the first private real assets mandates for CCCERA. The role of these 
investments was to provide a diversified core on which the private real assets platform could be built 
out. Both Aether and Commonfund invest in underlying funds focused primarily on metals, minerals, oil, 
and natural gas, with smaller allocations to agriculture, timber, and other sectors which has allowed for 
a fast ramp-up of CCCERA’s private real asset program. Both Aether and Commonfund focus on natural 
resources, though Commonfund will include fund investments with sizable allocations to secondaries 
and co-investments, and Aether will focus primarily on fund investments.  
 
Since CCCERA’s first investments in the core of private real assets, the program has been enhanced with 
commitments to the Waste Water Opportunity Fund, and ARES Fund V, which will narrowly focus on 
renewable power and natural gas, respectively. Additionally, CCCERA committed $100mm to a separate 
account which will follow Commonfund’s natural resource strategies to maintain the diversified core. 
With Aether coming back to market, we are recommending the commitment to Aether Real Assets IV to 
maintain the diversified core. 
 
Aether Real Assets IV Investment Strategy 
Aether builds diversified real asset fund-of-funds portfolios with the belief that being closer to the end 
commodity is ideal to capture the upstream economics as this is the purest expression of the commodity 
exposure, and that private ownership of commodities offers benefits that publicly traded commodities 
do not have.  
 
Aether believes that inefficiencies exist in the real asset space because of the privately negotiated 
nature of transactions, and the specialized technical expertise required to properly value assets in real 
assets sectors. Publicly traded commodities offer a similar inflation hedge to privately owned 
commodities, but are very entry and exit timing dependent to realize value. Private ownership of assets 
affords the opportunity to make operational improvements to assets over the holding period of an 
investment. Aether focuses on managers with industry, operational and technical experience in specific 
real assets sectors that they feel are best positioned to produce outsized returns.  
 
Aether Real Assets IV is expected to focus on three primary sectors: Oil and Natural Gas, Metals and 
Minerals and Agriculture and Timber. Additionally, sectors that may be opportunistically considered for 
investment include traditional and alternative energy assets, infrastructure and capital assets and water. 
Aether does not like strategies that depend upon high leverage or technological innovation to achieve 
targeted returns, and will not invest in real estate. This is the same sector focus from Aether Real Assets 
III. A brief overview of Aether’s approach to their core sectors is provided below: 
 
Oil & Natural Gas 
Aether will focus predominantly on funds acquiring working interests in oil and natural gas reserves, as 
which they believe provide a direct hedge against inflation and offer attractive absolute and relative 
return potential. 
 
Metals & Minerals 
Investments will focus on funds that invest in post-discovery stage mining projects. Such investments 
may include prefeasibility and feasibility stage mining projects in addition to producing mines. Aether 
will avoid strategies focused predominantly on discovery of metals and minerals.  
 
Agriculture & Timber 
Within the agriculture sector, Aether will primarily consider investment opportunities in row crops (e.g., 
corn and wheat), permanent crops (e.g., apple orchards and orange groves) and timber. As with oil and 



 3 

natural gas and metals and minerals, the Fund will emphasize opportunities in the upstream segment of 
the agriculture sector, including agricultural land and timberland. 
 
Within this segment, the ARA IV will focus primarily on strategies targeting the direct acquisition and 
management of agricultural land and/or timberland. Emphasis will be placed on funds managed by 
teams possessing farm or forestry management experience or general operating experience within the 
agribusiness or forest products industries. 
 
Aether has witnessed an increase in secondary transactions of real asset funds in recent years, and 
believe this trend will continue as the asset class is more broadly adopted within institutional investors’ 
portfolios. ARA IV will consider secondary investments, emphasizing investments in funds managed by 
managers with which Aether has invested historically. ARA IV will consider secondary investments in the 
same sectors as primary fund investments. 
 
Aether Overview 
Aether is a fund of funds manager with general preferences for smaller, earlier funds, and funds that 
focus on upstream, close to asset economics. Aether has raised three previous funds, plus one surplus 
fund since their inception in 2009. A summary of their funds as of March 31, 2015 is shown in the table 
below: 

 
 
As a fund of funds manager, there is an additional lag time for capital to be deployed for investors as 
Aether first has to identify attractive general partners, and then those general partners have to identify 
attractive investments. This dual layer of timing explains some of the lower TVPI and DPI ratios in Aether 
Real Asset Funds II-III (please also note that ARA III Surplus follows the same strategy, and allocates to 
the same funds as ARA III, except in those cases where a fund is oversubscribed and Aether cannot get 
an allocation large enough to make pro-rata allocations to ARA III and the surplus fund).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fund Fund Size Vintage Year % Called

% Committed to 

Underlying Funds TVPI DPI

ARA I $127mm 2009 95.8% 100.0% 1.15 0.42

ARA II $303mm 2012 54.4% 100.0% 0.95 0.05

ARA III $303mm 2013 14.9% 61.3% 0.96 0.00

ARA III Surplus $169mm 2013 23.8% 87.0% 1.00 0.00



 4 

Aether is still a relatively young firm with young funds, so absolute performance relative to benchmarks 
is not necessarily the clearest indication of manager skill. However, we have included since inception 
performance for all of Aether’s funds in the chart below relative to CCCERA’s private real asset 
benchmark of CPI+6% and the Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index (“BCOMTR”) as an example of 
an investable benchmark. Please note that Aether fund performance is net of Aether’s and underlying 
manager fees and carry, and is shown as of March 31, 2015: 

 
Notes: Since inception for ARA I is 10/7/2009, is 12/31/2011 for ARA II, and is 11/27/2013 for both ARA III and ARA III Surplus. 
 

Aether’s recent investments have been hurt by the fall in the commodity prices, however these funds 
are still far from having their capital fully deployed into the market. Aether’s first fund has shown 
performance materially above the broad commodities market, yet lower than the CPI+6% benchmark 
since inception on a net basis.  
 
The following charts show the historical fund size, fund number, and broad sector allocations of the four 
Aether funds as of March 31, 2015: 

 
Aether has been invested heavily in oil & natural gas and metals and minerals throughout their funds. In 
the most recent funds, metals and minerals have been receiving a larger allocation due to a greater 
buying opportunity as commodity prices in this sector are 88% lower than their 2010 peaks. It is 
expected that Aether IV will have a similar profile to ARA III, as oil & gas asset prices are coming under 
pressure, and as agriculture prices appear to be declining from multi-year highs.  



 5 

 
Aether prefers smaller funds for their portfolios, believing that there is a greater potential to exploit 
operational inefficiencies in previously ignored or mismanaged smaller assets, that smaller transactions 
tend to be less efficiently priced and exhibit lower valuation multiples, and that smaller funds tend to 
have better economic alignment between fund managers and their investors. Aether has generally 
stayed true to sticking with smaller funds across their portfolios, though in ARA III there has been large 
increases in funds in the $250mm-$499mm and $750mm+ range, with a corresponding decrease to the 
smallest fund segment of those below $250mm.  

 
Aether prefers to invest in earlier funds of general partners, believing that this is where they are best 
able to influence portfolio decisions. Historical allocations for Aether’s previous funds show a majority 
allocation to general partners’ first funds, though the allocations to funds series two through five has 
increased recently (part of this is explained by Aether going into the second fund of a general partner 
where Aether was a first fund investor). 
 
 
 
 
 



 6 

Notes on Aether Organization 
Aether is a small, relatively young, firm of eight employees, and the firm underwent an ownership 
transition in 2014. The details of the ownership transition were outlined in a memo to the Board dated 
August 6, 2014 from the CCCERA’s previous consultant, Milliman (see attached). Effectively, when 
CCCERA first hired Aether, the management company and the General Partner was 70% owned by the 
partners of Aether (Sean Goodrich and Troy Schell), and 30% by Northern Lights Capital Group. On 
August 5th, 2014, Troy and Sean sold their stake in the management company, making the management 
company 100% owned by Northern Lights Capital Group, and at the same time Aether received 100% 
ownership of the general partner. The Aether senior management team has long-term employment 
contracts for Aether Real Asset Funds IV-VII as a result of these transactions. Staff has met with both 
Northern Lights and Aether since the transaction, and feels that the sale of the management company 
to Northern Lights and whole ownership of the general partnership by Aether does not materially affect 
Aether’s ability to execute a real asset portfolio.  
 
CCCERA Available Commitments to Private Real Assets 
As stated in the Private Real Asset Commitment Schedule memo presented to the board in November 
2014, CCCERA will over-commit to direct private real assets by 75% in order to compensate the 
deployment pace of private real asset investments. It has been CCCERA’s experience with fund-of-funds 
in the private real asset space that the lag time for capital deployment is much longer, and Staff feels 
that a 100% over-commitment is appropriate for this portion of the mandate, which makes up roughly 
80% of current private real assets.  With this over-commitment and CCCERA’s total asset value as of July 
31, 2015, the availability for CCCERA to commit to private real asset is approximately $63 million, 
illustrated by the schedule below: 

 
 
CCCERA’s current and proposed real asset exposures (post a $50mm investment in Aether Real Assets 
IV) are shown below: 

The proposed allocation would bring the real assets program to 79% diversified strategies across Aether 
and Commonfund, up from 75% currently. Additionally, the allocations to water and energy would 
shrink by 1% and 3%, respectively.  

Value (Millions)

CCCERA Total Fund $7,465
     as of 7/31/2015

Real Assets @ 5% $373

    less Public Target @ 2.5% $187

=Private Real Asset Target @ 2.5% $187

Plus  80% FoF Investments @ 100% Over Commitment $149

Plus  20% of Direct Funds @ 75% Over Commitment $28

= Total Over Commitment $177

Total Private Real Asset Budget $364

    less Closed End Investments $38

    less Commitments $263

Estimated Available to Commit $63



 7 

Risks 
Outlined below are several relevant risks to this investment. Please not that this is not an exhaustive list 
of all possible risks, but are identified as significant to this particular investment. 
 
Commodity Price Risk 
Aether’s funds target areas of the market that are commodity price sensitive (metals and mining, 
energy, timber, agriculture, etc). The prices of these commodities will impact the value of the portfolio 
companies.  
 
Diversification 
While Aether has the ability to invest in a broad variety of real asset sectors, most of the investments 
have been made in metals & mining, and oil and natural gas. A lack of diversification can have a negative 
impact on the fund if these sectors underperform.  
 
Fund Size and Number 
Aether prefers to focus on small funds, and first time or near first time funds. These investments may 
carry additional risk as the fund managers may be newer to the space, and a smaller fund may be less 
diversified.  
  



 8 

Summary of Terms for Aether Real Assets IV, LP (Main Fund) 
 
Fund Size: $300-350 million 
 
Investment Approach: Real asset fund of funds. The Fund’s investment objective is to generate 

attractive absolute and relative returns and provide diversification 
relative to other asset classes, while also providing a hedge against 
inflation and a store of value in times of crisis 

 
Investment Restrictions: No more than 30% of the Fund Commitments will be committed to real 

asset sectors that are not Oil and Natural Gas, Metals and Minerals or 
Agriculture and Timber 

 
Commitment Period: 3 years after the initial closing  
 
Term: 12 years after the initial closing  
 
Management Fee*: 85 basis points as a base fee during years 1-5, which is then scaled out 

over the remaining life of the fund. The estimated average fee over the 
fund life is 63 basis points 

 
GP Commitment:  1% of commitments 
 
Preferred Return:  7%  
 
General Partner  
Carried Interest: 5% (reduced by 20% for first close investors, pro-rated if 1st close exceeds 

$175mm) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Please see management fee description on the following page. 



 9 

Management Fee Description and Simplified Schedule of Cash Flows – Main Fund 
The management fee for Aether Real Assets IV is 85 basis points for years 1-5, and is then reduced by 
15% per year through year 12. Fees for years 13-15 (should the fund need to extend this far to liquidate 
all investments and settle obligations) are capped at 10 basis points a year, and if the fund extends 
beyond 15 years, no management fee is charged for the incremental years.  
 
Below are the applicable management fees (in basis points) for years 1-12, which is the expected life of 
the fund: 
 

 
 
Illustrated below is a simplified schedule of cash flows for the investment. This is intended to illustrate 
the cash flows CCCERA would experience based on the assumptions stated below. Please note that this 
is a very simplified schedule of cash flows for illustrative purposes only and may not reflect the actual 
size and/or timing of capital deployment and fund distributions.  
 
Assumptions: 

 Fund invests 100% of committed capital over years 1-3, with all investments harvested in year 
twelve. 

 The scenario of a 1.5x multiple is below the minimum threshold for the General Partner to earn the 
stated 5% carried interest (with the illustrated cash flows, a 1.94x multiple would be manager hitting 
the 7% preferred return, and the 2.25x would be in the range for the GP to earn carry).  

 CCCERA will pay a total of $3.8mm in management fees, as part of committed capital over the 12 
year life of the fund. 

 

  

Years 1-5 Years 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12

Applicable Management Fee (bps) 85.0 72.3 61.4 52.2 44.4 37.7 32.1 27.2

1.50 1.94 2.25

Years 1-3

Fund Invests 100% of Commitment ($46.24) ($46.24) ($46.24)

Annual Management Fees of 0.85% on Committed Capital ($1.28) ($1.28) ($1.28)

Years 4-11

Annual Management Fees on Committed Capital ($2.35) ($2.35) ($2.35)

Year 12

Management Fee ($0.14) ($0.14) ($0.14)

Return of Invested Capital and Management Fees $50.00 $50.00 $50.00

Return of Realized Profits $25.00 $47.00 $61.73

(GP Keeps 5% for greater than 1.94X multiple)

Implied Multiple



 10 

Summary of Terms for Aether Real Assets IV Surplus Fund 
 
 
Investment Approach: Same as Aether ARA IV Main Fund, but would not participate in capacity 

constrained funds 
 
Investment Restrictions: Same as Aether ARA IV Main Fund 
 
Commitment Period: 3 years after the initial closing  
 
Term: 12 years after the initial closing  
 
Management Fee*: 60 basis points as a base fee during years 1-5, which is then scaled out 

over the remaining life of the fund. The estimated average fee over the 
fund life is 44 basis points 

 
GP Commitment: 0.5% of commitments 
 
Preferred Return: 7%  
 
General Partner  
Carried Interest: 3.5%  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Please see management fee description on the following page. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 11 

Management Fee Description and Simplified Schedule of Cash Flows – Surplus Fund 
The management fee for Aether Real Assets IV Surplus Fund is 60 basis points for years 1-5, and is then 
reduced by 15% per year through year 12. Fees for years 13-15 (should the fund need to extend this far 
to liquidate all investments and settle obligations) are capped at 10 basis points a year, and if the fund 
extends beyond 15 years, no management fee is charged for the incremental years.  
 
Below are the applicable management fees (in basis points) for years 1-12, which is the expected life of 
the fund: 

 
 
Illustrated below is a simplified schedule of cash flows for the investment. This is intended to illustrate 
the cash flows CCCERA would experience based on the assumptions stated below. Please note that this 
is a very simplified schedule of cash flows for illustrative purposes only and may not reflect the actual 
size and/or timing of capital deployment and fund distributions.  
 
Assumptions: 

 Fund invests 100% of committed capital over years 1-3, with all investments harvested in year 
twelve. 

 The scenario of a 1.5x multiple is below the minimum threshold for the General Partner to earn the 
stated 3.5% carried interest (with the illustrated cash flows, a 1.95x multiple would be manager 
hitting the 7% preferred return, and the 2.25x would be in the range for the GP to earn carry).  

 CCCERA will pay a total of $2.7mm in management fees, as part of committed capital over the 12 
year life of the fund. 

 

Years 1-5 Years 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12

Applicable Management Fee (bps) 60.0 51.0 43.4 36.8 31.3 26.6 22.6 19.2

1.50 1.95 2.25

Years 1-3

Fund Invests 100% of Commitment ($47.34) ($47.34) ($47.34)

Annual Management Fees of 0.60% on Committed Capital ($0.90) ($0.90) ($0.90)

Years 4-11

Annual Management Fees on Committed Capital ($1.66) ($1.66) ($1.66)

Year 12

Management Fee ($0.10) ($0.10) ($0.10)

Return of Invested Capital and Management Fees $50.00 $50.00 $50.00

Return of Realized Profits $25.00 $47.50 $61.97

(GP Keeps 3.5% for greater than 1.95X multiple)

Implied Multiple



1 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:   September 16, 2015 
 
To:   CCCERA Board of Retirement 
 
From:   Timothy Price, Retirement CIO 
  Jeff Youngman, Investment Analyst 
 
Subject:  Commitment to Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-Investment Fund 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendation 
We recommend that CCCERA commit $25mm to the Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Fund II Co-
Investment Fund pending satisfactory due diligence and legal reviews.  
 
This new fund is a co-investment fund, offered primarily to the investors in Siguler Guff Distressed Real 
Estate Fund II. The fund will seek to take advantage of direct investment opportunities that have come 
about as a result of manager relationships from Siguler Guff DREOF I & II. 
 
This memo provides a review of CCCERA’s current investments with Siguler Guff, an update on the 
amount of commitments available for CCCERA to private real estate investments, and the summary of 
terms for the new fund. 

 
CCCERA – Siguler Guff Relationship Overview 
CCCERA initiated its relationship with Siguler Guff in 2011 with a $75 million commitment to Siguler Guff 
Distressed Real Estate Fund I, and made a $70 million commitment to the follow-on fund, Siguler Guff 
Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund II in 2013. These investments are part of CCCERA’s real estate 
allocation, and specifically sought to take advantage of distressed real estate assets following the 
financial crisis of 2008-2009. CCCERA also made a $200 million commitment to a Siguler Guff separate 
account in 2014 that focuses on small buy out opportunities in the private equity space.  
 

Fund Commitment Date Commitment Size 

Siguler Guff DREOF I December 2011 $75 million 

Siguler Guff DREOF II August 2013 $70 million 

Siguler Guff CCCERA Opportunities (not RE) June 2014 $200 million 

 
CCCERA uses three managers in the distressed real estate portion of its portfolio: Siguler Guff, Paulson 
(this manager was sourced through Siguler Guff) and Oaktree. Paulson focuses on a unique opportunity 
in “broken” master planned communities, and Oaktree’s area of expertise is in the financial instrument 
side of distressed real estate as the bulk of their portfolio is re-capitalizations and non-performing loan 
pools. Siguler Guff is complementary to these managers due to the diversification offered via real estate 
fund investing, as well as their direct commercial property ownership.  

 



2 

Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-Investment Fund Overview 
Siguler Guff DREOF II invests both in funds of distressed real estate assets and direct distressed 
properties. The new co-investment fund will again focus on the distressed real estate market, but will 
invest exclusively in direct properties. The direct property investments will be alongside fund managers 
that Jim Corl (portfolio manager for Siguler Guff DREOF I & II) knows and has worked with in the 
previous funds. Mr. Corl’s broader network of fund managers will also be a source of deal flow, but it is 
expected that 95% of the deals will be with managers already in DREOF I & II. This follows the strategy of 
DREOF I & II of partnering with local experts in target markets. The target properties may not be from 
the same funds of DREOF I & II, but they will be with the same managers. This abates some of the usual 
concerns surrounding co-investment concentration with the main fund portfolio.  
 
Currently, DREOF II has a maximum allowance of 40% to co-investments, and the volume of attractive 
co-investment deals is beginning to push up against this limit. The co-investment vehicle will be a means 
to opportunistically capture the most attractive investments stemming from this deal flow. Relative to 
DREOF II, the co-investment fund will have relaxed geographic constraints, allowing for a greater 
allocation to Europe, where the opportunity set continues to evolve due to instability in the Euro-zone 
and the onset of ECB quantitative easing. Siguler Guff believes this will prolong the buying opportunity 
throughout Europe and the UK, with distressed debt continuing to represent a clear catalyst to the 
opportunity set.  
 
The investment thesis for DREOF II is to take advantage of cyclical market conditions in both the United 
States and Europe (including the United Kingdom) that would allow the purchase of quality commercial 
real estate assets at attractive prices which fit Siguler Guff’s value‐oriented, cycle‐aware investment 
philosophy. DREOF I & II’s investment strategy is to commit capital to real estate in periods of distress, 
which is now largely played out.  The DREOF II co-investment fund is effectively a “clean up” portfolio 
where Siguler Guff can continue to acquire what it deems are the best distressed assets still available as 
a result of the financial crisis.  
 
Commercial real estate is no longer starved for capital as it was following the financial crisis, but Siguler 
Guff feels that inefficiencies remain in smaller deals that are still mispriced versus large ones, as well as 
a market preference for cash-flowing assets versus non-cash flowing assets. The opportunity in the non-
cash flowing assets harkens back to the “operator cycle” that was noted in Staff’s memo to the Board in 
September 2014, whereby managers must create value by manufacturing a stabilized, cash-flowing 
asset without the tailwind of a market rising from recessionary lows.  
 
Staff feels that the distressed real estate opportunity is likely on its last legs, but that the opportunistic 
structure of this fund warrants an investment by CCCERA. At a target asset level of $250mm, the fund is 
much smaller than its predecessors, and a size which Staff feels is right for the opportunity set. 
Additionally, management fees are charged on invested capital only, and the preferred return is 8%, 
which is the same as DREOF I & II. This provides some assurance that capital will only be deployed if 
Siguler Guff is able to find opportunities as good as those in DREOF I & II.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

Performance Review of CCCERA’s Real Estate Investments with Siguler Guff 
Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Funds I & II were formed following the financial crisis due to the 
robust opportunity to buy distressed assets both directly and through fund managers. A summary of the 
funds is shown below: 

Fund Size Vintage Year

Fund 

Investments

Direct 

Investments

DREOF I $630.1mm 2010 14 23

DREOF II $877.4mm 2013 12 11  
 
DREOF I & II were sized for the prevailing opportunity set in their respective vintage years. CCCERA 
committed $75mm to DREOF I and $70mm to DREOF II, which have been 81% and 43% called, 
respectively. Performance for these funds is strong given their relatively young age, with both funds 
having a total value to paid in capital ratio of 1.67. Distributions have been especially strong in DREOF II, 
where all of the $15.9mm of distributions through July 31, 2015 have been added back to committed 
capital due to the distributions coming so early in the fund’s life. The table below summarizes this data: 

CCCERA

Commitment 

($mm)

Called 

Capital

Distributed 

Capital

Market 

Value

Remaining 

Commitment TVPI DPI

DREOF I $75 $60.4 $24.8 $75.8 $14.6 1.67 0.41

DREOF II $70 $29.8 $15.9 $33.8 $59.2 1.67 0.53  
 
Siguler Guff has put capital to work quickly, and has been able to build diversified portfolios for both 
DREOF I & II across geography, property type, and implementation vehicle, as shown in the charts below 
(based on commitments, as of March 31, 2015): 

2% 7%

15%

39%
35%

21%

48%
33%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

DREOF I DREOF II

Geographic and Strategy Allocations of DREOF I & II

Direct - Europe Fund - Europe Direct - North America Fund - North America

 
The distress cycle in Europe has trailed the United States by several years. DREOF II has captured this 
opportunity with large increases to both European direct and fund investments in DREOF II relative to 
DREOF I.  
 
 



4 

32%
41%

12%

25%
7%

10%
7%
5%

14%

4%

13%

3%

9%

5%
13%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

DREOF I DREOF II

Sector Allocations of SG DREOF I & II

Office Retail Land
Residence/Condo Multifamily RE Debt
Hotel Various Industrial

 
 

The allocations of DREOF I are more established as the fund investment period ended in July of 2014, 
and the direct investment period will end in July of 2016. DREOF II has a longer runway to identify 
opportunities as the fund investment period ends in August of 2017, and the direct investment period 
ends in August of 2019.    
 

CCCERA Ability to Commit to Private Real Estate Funds and Current Portfolio 
CCCERA has $113mm available to commit to private real estate after consideration is given to unfunded 
capital commitments and CCCERA’s policy of over committing to real estate to account for the lag time 
between when dollars are committed and when they are called. This is shown in the table below.  
 

 

Value (Millions)

CCCERA Total Fund $7,465

     as of 7/31/2015

Real Estate @ 12.5% $933

    less REIT Target @ 3.5% $261

=Private R.E. Funds @ 9% $672

less Willows Property $10

= Closed End Target $662

    plus 75% Over-Commitment $496

Total Real Estate Budget $1,158

    less Closed End Investments $679

    less Commitments $366

Estimated Available to Commit $113  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

CCCERA’s real estate allocations fall into the strategies outlined below: 

 
As shown in the chart below, CCCERA’s private real estate is more heavily weighted towards the higher-
risk, higher-return end of the spectrum. This is a result of the opportunity set that was present following 
the financial crisis, and Staff’s view of relative values among real estate strategies. Additionally, 
CCCERA’s real estate is used as more of a growth asset versus an income producing asset (as would be 
the case with core and core plus real estate).  
 
A $25mm allocation to Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-Investment Fund would have a very small effect on 
CCCERA’s overall real estate portfolio positioning, but would allow for a “clean up” of any remaining 
opportunities that still exist as a result of the financial crisis. The net effect on the portfolio would be a 
slight increase to distressed real estate, with small decreases in core (note that CCCERA does not use 
core as classically defined, but uses the Willows Office Property and REITs as a proxy for core) and 
opportunistic real estate.  

19% 19%

21% 20%

31% 32%

30% 29%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Current Portfolio Positioning Post Commitment Positioning

CCCERA Real Estate Portfolio
Current and Prospective Positioning

Value Add Core Distressed Opportunistic

 
 
 

 
Strategy 

CCCERA 
Manager 

 

Investment Theme 
Example 

 

Operating Risk Financial 
Leverage 

Target Return 

Core 
 

None/REITs used 
as proxy 

 
Office, Retail, 

Apartment  with low 
vacancy in prime 

markets 
 

Low Low Low 

Value-Added 
 

Invesco, 
Long Wharf, 

LaSalle 
 

Tenant improvement Medium Medium Medium 

Opportunistic 
 

DLJ, 
Angelo Gordon 

 
Development project High High High 

Distressed 
 

Oaktree, 
Siguler Guff, 

Paulson 
 

Recapitalization Medium-High Low-High High 



6 

Risks 
Outlined below are several relevant risks to this investment. Please not that this is not an exhaustive list 
of all possible risks, but are identified as significant to this particular investment. 
 
Valuation 
Real estate markets are currently experiencing a high point in valuations. Investing in an extended 
valuation environment can lead to poor returns due to a high valuation entry point if capital is not 
deployed prudently. 
 
Timing 
Across CCCERA’s two real estate commitments, Siguler Guff has the ability to continue making new 
investments through 2019. Given the current state of the real estate capital markets, investments made 
later in the current cycle will likely need a continuation of the favorable conditions to be exited 
profitably. 
 
Leverage 
Real estate assets in the Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-Investment Fund can be leveraged up to a maximum of 
70% of their cost. While leverage is a common feature in real estate, it can be as damaging to returns as 
it can be helpful should the market turn down after properties have been acquired.  
 
Core Buyer Exit 
Siguler Guff’s thesis of buying distressed assets and turning them into stabilized, cash flowing properties 
is profitable only if there is a buyer for the stabilized property. Over the past several years the core real 
estate market has been this buyer. If the core market softens, and the appetite for well positioned cash 
flowing properties declines, or the market prices down the value of stabilized cash flowing assets, 
Siguler Guff may not be able to sell the properties at their underwritten exit prices, lowering returns for 
fund investors.  
 



7 

Summary of Key Terms of Siguler Guff DREOF II Co‐Investment Fund, LP 
 
 
The Fund:  Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund II Co-Investment 

Fund 
 
Fund Size: $250mm 
 
Investment Focus: Direct distressed real estate investments that are sourced through 

relationships established via Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Funds I & 
II, primarily in North America and Europe.  

 
Investment Restrictions: No single Portfolio Investment will constitute more than 20% of the 

committed capital (unless a majority in interest of the limited partners of 
the Partnership approves), and unless the Advisory Board otherwise 
approves, the Partnership will limit its exposure outside of North 
America and Europe to 15% of committed capital. 

 
Preferred Return: 8%, with a 100% catch-up 
 
General Partner 
Commitment: 3% of aggregate capital commitments 
 
Investment Period: 2 years from final close 
 
Fund Term: Ten years after the initial close, or after all investments have been 

realized with proceeds distributed and fund obligations settled, 
whichever happens later. Subject to two 1-year extensions with the 
consent of the Advisory Board  

 
Fees: 1.0% per annum on invested capital 
 
Carried Interest: 15% 

 



8 

Simplified Schedule of Cash Flows 
Illustrated below is a simplified schedule of cash flows for the investment. This is intended to illustrate 
the cash flows CCCERA would experience based on the assumptions stated below. Please note that this 
is a very simplified schedule of cash flows for illustrative purposes only and may not reflect the actual 
size and/or timing of capital deployment and fund distributions.  
 
Assumptions: 

 Fund invests equally over two-year investment period, with all investments harvested in year ten. 

 Fund is 99% called, including management fees. 

 The scenario of a 1.88x multiple is the minimum threshold for the General Partner to begin earning 
the stated 15% carried interest, (everything above a 1.88x multiple would be subject to the GP 
earning carried interest).  

 CCCERA will pay a total of $2.1mm in management fees, as part of called capital over 10 years. 
 

1.50 1.88 2.00

Year 1

Fund invests portion of commitment ($11.30) ($11.30) ($11.30)

Management Fee of 1.0% of Invested Capital ($0.11) ($0.11) ($0.11)

Year 2

Fund invests remaining portion of commitment ($11.30) ($11.30) ($11.30)

Management Fee of 1.0% of Invested Capital (now 100% of commitment) ($0.23) ($0.23) ($0.23)

Years 3-9

Management Fees ($230K per year, totaled for 7 years) ($1.58) ($1.58) ($1.58)

Year 10

Management Fee ($0.23) ($0.23) ($0.23)

Return of Invested Capital and Management Fees $24.75 $24.75 $24.75

Return of Realized Profits (GP Keeps 15% for above 1.88X multiple) $12.37 $21.78 $24.30

Implied Multiple

 



 

 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747    www.cccera.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: September 23, 2015 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:     Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with          

 McLagan for an investment compensation study   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

 

On August 12, 2015, the Board of Retirement authorized the CEO to execute a contract with 

Koff and Associates for a total compensation and classification study.  In reviewing possible 

vendors to conduct the study, it was discovered that McLagan had broad compensation 

knowledge of investment management organizations in the private sector.  McLagan is a 

consulting firm that conducts compensation studies and has developed a proprietary database of 

private sector data.  They have conducted similar studies for other peer organizations. 

 

In order to provide a review of CCCERA investment employee compensation, it is requested to 

allow McLagan to conduct this study at a cost of $15,000. 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with McLagan for an 

investment compensation study.   

 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

Date:  September 23, 2015    

To:  CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From:  Christina Dunn, Retirement Admin/HR Manager 

Subject: Actuarial valuation of future annual costs of proposed changes to Other Post 

Employment Benefits 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Background 

 

Government Code Section 7507 requires that the future costs, as determined by the actuary, of 

changes in retirement benefits or other postemployment benefits for CCCERA employees, be 

made public at a public meeting at least two weeks prior to the adoption of any changes in public 

retirement plan benefits or other postemployment benefits.  A tentative agreement has been 

reached between CCCERA and AFSCME Local 2700 United Clerical, Technical & Specialized 

Employees which will result in medical plan changes that are calculated in the September 2015 

report from Milliman.  If ratified by the union, we expect the changes to come before the 

Retirement Board for approval on October 7, 2015. 

 

Recommendation 

 

Consider and take possible action to accept the actuarial valuation of future annual costs of 

proposed changes to Other Post Employment Benefits as provided by Milliman in its September 

2015 report. 

 



PLEASE NOTE:  

 

The September 2015 

Milliman Report will be 

placed in Dropbox before 

the Board Meeting and 

handed out in hard copy at 

the Meeting. 




















































	agenda 9.23.15
	Item 3
	Minutes 6.10.15
	Minutes 7.23.15

	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 8
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 11

	Item 12

